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‘A moth-eaten rag’: Regimental Colours in Cirencester Parish Church

by David Viner

Introduction — why Colours?

In the British Army Colours and standards (or more colloquially ‘flags’ and less correctly ‘banners’) have
a deeply symbolic significance in that they are the focal point around which all those in a corps or
regiment direct their loyalty and commitment to that corps or regiment. They are a physical, visible and
symbolic manifestation of its corporate life and therefore of the lives of those associated with it.

The Colours display the battle honours of the corps or regiment, with place names and dates; in battle, the
Colours assume an even greater significance in that they are the rallying point for troops, and the stimulus
to acts of courage and bravery in combat.

This deep level of significance remains throughout the ‘working’ life of the Colours, from the point at
which they are formally received in an appropriate ceremony to the point at which they are laid up in
equally formal ceremonial circumstances, to be replaced by new colours reflecting any changes in the
organisation of the regiment or corps within the British army.

Nor does significance end there. The process of laying up, undertaken in a religious ceremony within a
church closely associated with the particular regiment or corps, consigns that responsibility in perpetuity -
that is ‘dust to dust’ - to the recipient church or other authorities as a permanent reminder of regimental or
corps achievement. This is why Colours can be seen permanently preserved in most cathedrals and many
churches and other institutions today.

Regimental Context

Regiments of ‘more workmanlike’ Militia were formed or augmented in the mid 18™ century onwards by a
series of Militia Acts, to provide a reservc force for use as required at home and also as necessary in
emergency abroad in support of the regular forccs. They were but one part of a complexity of militia,
volunteer battalions and yeomanry which survived until the reforms of the British Army in the early 20"
century, consequent largely upon the experiences of the Boer War and as part of a general readiness for
what became the First World War.

As with so much of this pattern of activity, a sense of local association was of primary significance, in that
local people made up the force as both officers and men, and this association with place remained a key
part of the overall esprit de corps. The focus of the Regiment of Militia under review here, and their two
sets of Colours, was Cirencester.

In Gloucestershire, Regiments of Militia were formed in 1750' . By 1763 these had been divided into
South and North Battalions, the latter called The North Gloucestershire Regiment of Militia, with its
headquarters at Cirencester. In 1795, in consequence of a decision by King George 111, it was renamed The
Royal North Gloucestershire Militia, a name it retamed until the widespread reforms of the British Army
in 1881 (the Cadell reforms) when it became the 4™ Battalion of The Gloucestershire Regiment (Royal
North Gloucestershire ]\/[llltla) Its period as such was relatively short-lived as further widespread re-
organisation early in the 20" century (the Haldane reforms, referred to above) brought its 145 years or so
of history to an end in 1908°,
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